
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 3, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Nena James 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Medical Staff Bylaws (Remains under review/development, no request for action) 

B. Employee Policies Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director 

1. Non-Discrimination & Anti-Harassment (For Review)  

2. Consensual Relationships (For Action)   

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Board of Trustees Bylaws (For Review) Barbara Sowada 

B. Board of Trustees Calendar (For Review) Barbara Sowada 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Barbara Sowada 

B. Joint Conference Committee                                        Barbara Sowada 

C. Building & Grounds Committee                       Marty Kelsey 

D. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

E. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

F. Quality Committee Kandi Pendleton 

G. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

H. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. Groathouse GMP (Guaranteed Maximum Price) 

Approval for Laboratory Expansion Project (For Action) 

2. I.S. Report 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

I. Foundation Board 

IX. Contract Review               Irene Richardson 

A. Contract Approved by the CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Varian Medical Systems 

1/141



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 3, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

X. Board Education                   Barbara Sowada 

A. Effective Compliance Programs by Veralon 

B. Compliance & Legal Requirements by Veralon  

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts 

XII. Good of the Order                   Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/141



OUR MISSION 

Compassionate care for every life we touch. 

 

 OUR VISION 

To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

 

  OUR VALUES 

   Be Kind 

    Be Respectful 

     Be Accountable 

      Work Collaboratively 

       Embrace Excellence 

 

   OUR STRATEGIES 

    Patient Experience 

     Quality & Safety 

      Community, Services & Growth 

       Employee Experience 

        Financial Stewardship 

3/141



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

March 4, 2024 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

March 4, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. 

Barbara Sowada.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Sweetwater County Commissioner Liaison; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Rood read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson presented at the Green River Chamber of Commerce monthly luncheon and a 

recent Davinci surgery patient shared a story with the group about how great his experience was 

and recommended the procedure at the Hospital.   

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge 

James. Motion carried.    

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the February 7, 2024, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. The motion to approve the 

minutes of the February 28, 2024, special workshop meeting as presented was made by Mr. Rood; 

second by Judge James. Ms. Pendleton abstained and the motion carried.  

 

  

4/141



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policy – Non-Discrimination & Anti-Harassment 

 

Ms. Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director, said the proposed consensual relationships policy 

contains an update of information that was contained in the non-discrimination and anti-

harassment policy so the policy will be able to come before the Human Resources Committee at 

their next meeting.  

 

Emergency Operations Plan 

 

The motion to approve the plan as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Motion carried.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policy – Consensual Relationships 

 

Ms. Fisk said this section was in another larger policy and it became apparent it needed to be 

revised and be a separate policy. She said the Human Resources Committee reviewed the proposed 

policy. Mr. Kelsey said he feels it is exceptionally written.  

 

2024-2027 Strategic Plan 

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the information. She said we started this work in 2023 and brought in a 

consultant to assist. The Board of Trustees, Medical Staff, Leadership Team, and staff were 

involved. Ms. Richardson said this is a living document and we want to dovetail with our 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) priorities. She said the consultant thought 

our mission, vision, values, and strategic priority pillars were wonderful. Ms. Richardson said we 

developed new goals within each pillar. She said the proposed plan will be shared with staff in 

upcoming town hall meetings. Ms. Richardson said she will report back to the Board on our 

progress on a quarterly basis. The motion to approve the 2024-2027 Strategic Plan as presented 

was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Dr. Sowada asked the Trustees to review the proposed Medical Staff Bylaws and get comments 

and questions to Ms. Pendelton or Dr. Sowada by March 15 to help them prepare to participate in 

a Joint Conference Committee meeting. Mr. Kelsey asked Mr. Phillips to review the information. 

 

  

5/141



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson provided an update on strategic plan activities related to patient experience, quality 

and safety, community and growth, workplace experience, and financial stewardship. She said we 

continue to evaluate Critical Access Hospital status. We are evaluating a trial observation unit. 

Master Plan work continues. Ms. Richardson recognized Dr. Sowada for doing an excellent job 

presenting on a panel at the recent American Hospital Association Rural Healthcare Conference.  

Ms. Richardson thanked staff, physicians, the Board and the County Commissioners for their good 

work and support.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said we had another outstanding month financially.  

 

I.S. Report: Mr. Kelsey said this is very important to this institution.  

 

Bad Debt: Mr. Kelsey said we did not have bad debt information available and would review for 

approval at the next meeting.   

 

Foundation Board 

 

Ms. Richardson said Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, has resigned and we wish her the 

best in the future. 

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said there is nothing to report. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee has not met.  

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said his report and the meeting minutes are in the packet. He said we are scheduled to 

receive the Guaranteed Maximum Pricing (GMP) from Groathouse for the Lab Renovation Project 

later in the month and plan to bring the information to the April meeting for approval. He does not 

think we will need a special meeting to approve. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton said the Committee did not meet. 

 

  

6/141



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Quality Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton distributed the executive summary for review. She said Ms. Kara Jackson, Director 

Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety, and Risk, resigned and is moving. Ms. Pendleton said we 

wish her the best.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Ms. Pendelton said the Committee held a special meeting to review the consensual relationships 

policy. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes are in the packet. She reminded everyone the June Trustee regular 

meeting has been moved to May 29, 2024. The May Finance & Audit Committee meeting has 

been moved to May 28, 2024. The July Trustee regular meeting has been moved from July 3 to 

July 1, 2024. 

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

 

Dr. Sowada asked for discussion regarding the assignment of Vision and Talent by Kaufman Hall. 

She asked people to share one talent and one spirit they bring to the table. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director, shared a report provided by Dr. Crofts. The 

General Medical Staff met and reviewed bylaws changes. Dr. Crofts and other medical leaders 

attended a WyAMSS (Wyoming Association Medical Staff Services) leadership conference in 

Sheridan, Wyoming. She said it was very educational and she would like us to consider hosting a 

future WYAMMS conference in Rock Springs.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Ms. Pendleton asked if it would be possible to put some health fair lab testing information together 

to better understand the tests offered and if any of them are suggested to be grouped together, for 

example, a women’s health panel. Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, said she will 

follow up with the Lab to develop additional information and offerings.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:14 p.m. to consider or receive any information 

classified as confidential by law was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

Dr. Sowada said there would be a 10-minute break. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 4:26 p.m. was made by Ms. 

Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

7/141



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Pursuant to the notice provided in the agenda, the Board of Trustees held discussions and action 

was taken.   

 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the Medical Staff as discussed in 

executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from February 13, 2024 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Sanjay Ramakumar, Urology 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Ann Bruno, Maternal Fetal Medicine 

 Dr. Robert Joodi, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Peggy Rouleau, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Neal Asper, Anesthesia 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Benjamin Bak, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Alexander Colonna, Tele-ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Marta McCrum, Tele-ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. David Renner, Tele-Stroke (U of U) 

5. Reappointment to Non-Physician Provider Staff (2 years) 

 Melissa Jewell, Family Medicine Physician Assistant 

 

The motion to approve contracts and authorize the CEO to execute the contracts as discussed in 

executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve the legal agreement for joint defense as discussed in executive session was 

made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:27 p.m.  

      

    

  ___________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

8/141



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:4/3/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
HR Committee – Existing Policy 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
The Human Resources Committee held it’s regular meeting on March 18, 2024 
and reviewed the updated policy – (14361338) Employee Policies – Non-
Discrimination and Anti-Harassment.  

 

 Board Committee Action: 

HR Committee recommends that the Board take action on this policy as the only 
changes made were removing the ‘Consensual Relationships’ section which was 
then made in to it’s own employee policy. This new policy is at the Board level on 
first read.   
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 

 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☒ In House Comments:Suzan Campbell has reviewed  

 ☐ Board  Comments:Geoff Phillips has reviewed 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Leadership recommends that this policy pass as to better serve our employees 
and the interests of the Hospital.  

9/141



10/141



11/141



12/141



13/141



14/141



15/141



16/141



17/141



18/141



19/141



20/141



21/141



 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:4/3/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  

Employee Policy – Consensual Relationship Policy 

 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☐ Revision 

 ☒ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  
 
The Human Resources Committee held a special meeting on 02/26/2024 to discuss the above 
mentioned (and attached) policy. In House Counsel, along with Board Counsel, Geoff Phillips, 
have worked on this policy and presented it to the Committee members for review. The 
Committee agreed unanimously that the policy is accurate and recommends a do pass to the 
Board once they have had a chance to review. It is well written and is imperative to have active. 

 

Board Committee Action: 

Please review as a second read for action at the April 2024 Board Meeting. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review:  

 ☒ In House Comments: Suzan Campbell has reviewed the policy 

 ☒ Board  Comments: Geoff Phillips drafted the policy 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
 
Leadership recommends that this policy pass as to better serve our employees and the interests 
of the Hospital.  

22/141



23/141



24/141



25/141



26/141



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:4/3/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Revised BOT Bylaws 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
A Board of Trustees subcommittee was formed and appointed by Barbara Sowada 
to review and revise the Board of Trustees Bylaws. Review and revision has been 
completed. Revised Bylaws with changes and deletion are ready for full Board of 
Trustees review.  

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Bylaws subcommittee, chaired by Marty Kelsey, reviewed and revised the Bylaws.   
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 

 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☒ In House Comments:In House Counsel was a member of the 
Bylaws subcommittee 

 ☐ Board  Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
CEO recommends approval of revised Board of Trustees Bylaws.  

27/141



1  

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Board of Trustees 

Bylaws 

 
CHAPTER I: DEFINITIONS 

 
Section 1. Authority 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) was established pursuant to WY Stat § 18-
8-101 et seq. (2022 2009). Accordingly, it is a county public hospital that operates and acts 
exclusively for tax-exempt purposes. 

Section 2. Definitions 

A. The ANNUAL MEETING is the first Wednesday in July. 
B. The BOARD OF TRUSTEES (Board) of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) is 

as defined in Chapter III, Section 1, of these Bylaws. 
C. The BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (Commissioners) shall mean the board of duly 

qualified elected officials in Sweetwater County, Wyoming as provided in WY Stat § 18- 3-
501 (2018 2009) that has the authority and duty to appoint members of the Board of the 
Hospital according to WY Stat § 18-8-102 (2022 2009). 

D. The CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) is as defined in Chapter V, Section 1, of these Bylaws. 
E. The FISCAL YEAR commences on July 1 and concludes on June 30 of the following calendar 

year. 
F. The HOSPITAL shall mean Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County and all services and 

facilities operated under its license. 
G. The MEDICAL STAFF refers to licensed practitioners who attend to patients in the Hospital. 

Members include physicians and non-physician providers. 
H. A TRUSTEE is a member of the Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

28/141



2  

CHAPTER II: LEGAL STRUCTURE 

Section 1. Legal Structure 

The Board is appointed by the Commissioners and is constituted as a body corporate and with 
perpetual existence with the duty to erect, manage, operate and control the Hospital pursuant 
to WY Stat §§ 18-8-101 et seq. (2022 2009). 

Section 2. Overall Statements 
The Board has the authority and duty to approve mission, values and vision statements, and the strategic 
plans for the Hospital, as well as to provide oversight of the CEO. 

 

CHAPTER III: GOVERNING BODY 

Section 1. Appointment and Term 

A non-partisan board of at least five (5) and no more than eleven (11) residents of Sweetwater 
County shall be appointed by the Commissioners as provided in WY Stat §§ 18-8-102, 18-8-104 
(2022 2009). Hospital employees cannot be appointed to the Board. WY Stat § 18-8-102 (2022 
2009). The Board shall always consist of an odd number of Trustees. 

Trustees are appointed for a five (5) year term. The term shall begin on the first Monday of July 
and end on the first Monday of July of the fifth year. Trustees may be eligible for reappointment 
by the Commissioners to succeed themselves for one (1) additional term. Trustees who are 
appointed to fill a vacancy are eligible to succeed themselves for two (2) additional terms. 

The Board, as the Hospital’s governing body, has the sole legal responsibility for the conduct of the Hospital 
as an institution. No individual member of the Board is personally liable for any actions, inactions, 
omissions, or procedures of the Board. Wyo. Stat. § 18-8-104 (2009 through Reg Sess).        The Board, as 
the Hospital’s governing body, has general control over the Hospital as an institution.  No individual 
member of the Board is personally liable   for any action or procedure of the Board.  WY Stat § 18-8-104 
(2022  2009). 

Section 2. Resignation 

A Trustee may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the 
Commissioners and a copy to the President of the Board. The resignation shall be effective when 
stated, or if not stated, upon presentation to the President of the Board. Any vacancies shall be 
filled by appointments made by the Commissioners. 

 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

29/141



3  

Section 3. Removal 

A Trustee may be removed from the Board by the Commissioners. The Board may recommend 
the removal of a disruptive Board member. 

 
Section 4. Seal 

The Board shall have a seal on which shall be engraved the name of the Hospital. This seal shall 
be kept by the Hospital’s CEO and used in authentication of acts of the Board and the Hospital 
when such authentication is required or necessary. 

Section 5. Policies 

The Board shall create and establish such Board policies as it shall deem necessary and 
appropriate. The Board shall also create and approve a process for the review of Hospital wide 
policies over which the Board has oversight obligations. 

Section 6. Meeting Records 

The minutes of all Board meetings shall be available for public inspection at the Hospital’s 
administrative office and on the Hospital’s website, in accordance with applicable laws. 

Section 7. Powers and General Duties of the Board of Trustees 

The Wyoming Statutes, providing for the creation of memorial hospital’s WY Stat §§ 18-8-101 et 
seq. 2009 2022), vest in the Board the sole duty to erect, manage and control the Hospital and 
all property, affairs, and funds received for the benefit of the Hospital. Accordingly, the Board 
shall have the power and authority to do and perform all acts, functions, and things necessary, 
proper, and consistent with these Bylaws, Laws of the United States, and the Laws of the State 
of Wyoming to effect the purposes for which the Hospital has been created. 

Consistent therewith, the powers and duties of the Board, as the governing body, shall generally 
include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

A. Organizing itself as provided in these Bylaws (See Chapter IV) 
B. Monitoring compliance with federal, state and local laws 
C. Providing direction and exercising general oversight over the affairs of the Hospital to 

ensure fulfillment of its mission 
D. Monitoring that all applicable accreditations and licenses are obtained and maintained as 

are appropriate and necessary to effectuate the Hospital’s purpose 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

30/141



4  

E. Providing for the establishment of a duly licensed and qualified Medical Staff to carry out 
the Hospital’s obligations and objectives for the care of the sick and infirm of the Hospital 
(See Chapter VII) 

F. Overseeing the ongoing implementation, maintenance, and monitoring of the standards 
of safe, quality, and efficient medical care in accordance with all applicable laws and 
accrediting bodies 

G. Appointing and fixing compensation and terms of office for a properly qualified CEO, who 
shall be responsible to the Board for managing the Hospital and who shall carry out the 
delegated authority of the Board. Consistent with such appointment, the Board shall 
periodically review and evaluate the performance of the CEO such officer 

H. Reviewing and approving an annual operating and annual and long-term capital budgets 
for the Hospital. The budget shall be for the Hospital’s fiscal year, which commences on 
July 1 and concludes June 30 of the following calendar year. The budget shall be presented 
to the Commissioners in June, prior to commencement of the fiscal year 

I. Monitoring that the Hospital maintains a uniform system of accounting in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles and federal hospital regulations 

J. Retaining an independent auditor consistent with applicable laws and best practices to 
examine the Hospital’s financial statements and provide a written report that contains an 
opinion as to whether the financial statements are fairly stated and comply in all material 
respects to the applicable audit standards 

K. Monitoring that the Hospital has an overall institutional plan that meets the conditions of 
the Medicare Conditions of Participation 

L. Receiving and owning personal property, and such real property as is authorized by 
Wyoming Statutes 

M. Making, altering, revoking, amending, executing and enforcing such Bylaws of the 
Hospital and the Medical Staff as the Board determines will promote the Hospital’s best 
interest in accordance with the laws and the Hospital’s mission 

N. Retaining independent counsel 
O. Having a policy and procedure for the approval and oversight of contracts entered into by 

the Hospital that assures 1) the maintenance of a data base that includes the nature, 
scope and length of term for each contract and 2) that prior to entering into any contract 
or affiliation agreement that must be approved by the Commissioners, the Board obtains 
the Commissioners’ approval 

P. Having a policy and procedure for the approval and oversight of clinical service contracts 
that assures 1) the maintenance of a data base that includes the nature, scope and length 
of term for each contract, 2) evidence of physician involvement in the selection of the 
contractor, and 3) an annual evaluation showing the contractor meets quality standards 

 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

31/141



5  

Q. Procuring and entering into contracts for adequate and prudent insurance necessary and 
desirable for the conduct and operation of the Hospital 

R. Making provision for a Hospital Auxiliary and a non-profit Foundation, as the needs may 
arise. The Board shall require that Bylaws be established and shall approve such Bylaws, 
and any amendments thereof, for the Auxiliary and Foundation 

S. Reporting to and making recommendations to the Commissioners as necessary and 
appropriate including the submission of the Hospital’s annual budget as required 

T. Periodically reviewing and approving a general employee wage/compensation plan to 
assure an adequate workforce 

U. Monitoring that all Board members understand and fulfill their responsibilities as Trustees 
of the Hospital and providing for periodic evaluation of the Board’s performance. New 
members of the Board shall participate in a Hospital Trustee orientation program and all 
members are encouraged to participate in available education programs 

V. Complying with state statutes for conducting open (public) meetings 
W. Providing for a systematic and effective mechanism for communication among the 

Medical Staff, the Board, and the CEO 
X. Assessing the health care needs of the community, the services provided by the Hospital, 

and the number of practitioners providing those services. In that regard, the Board 
retains the authority to restrict or expand the services offered by the Hospital, to restrict 
or expand the number of employed, licensed practitioners providing services in a given 
specialty based on its evaluation, and to determine that an exclusive contract is or is not 
necessary for a specific specialty or service 

Y. Considering, and if appropriate, establishing rules of conduct and behavior for the 
members of the Medical Staff, and procedures for monitoring compliance with such rules 

Z. Considering, and if appropriate, establishing through Board policy, such economic conflict 
of interest requirements for membership on the Hospital Medical Staff as deemed to be 
in the best interest of the Hospital 

AA. As the Hospital’s governing body, having oversight over the sole legal responsibility for the conduct of 
the Hospital as an institution. No individual member of the Board is personally liable for any action or 
procedure of the Board As the Hospital’s governing body, having general control over the Hospital as an 
institution.  No individual member of the Board is personally liable for any action or procedure of the Board. 

 
CHAPTER IV: ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
Section 1. Meetings 

 
 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

32/141



6  

Any assembly of at least a quorum of the Board that has been called by proper authority for the 
purpose of discussion, deliberation, presentation of information, or taking action regarding 
public business is a public meeting, open to the public at all times, except as otherwise provided. 

A. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on Hospital premises on the first Wednesday 
of each month, unless the Board sets the regular meeting for an upcoming month on a 
different date and/or location. The annual meeting of the Hospital governing body shall 
be the July meeting. The September Board meeting shall be in Green River. Any meeting 
that is not a regular meeting is a special meeting. 

B. Special meetings may be called by the presiding officer of the Board by giving verbal, 
electronic, or written notice of the meeting to each member of the governing body and 
to each newspaper of general circulation, radio, and television requesting the notice. The 
notice shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be 
transacted and shall be issued at least eight (8) hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting. No other business, other than noticed, shall be considered at a special meeting. 

C. Notice of special meetings and changes to the time or place of regular meetings shall be 
announced during the course of regular meetings and/or given to persons as well as each 
newspaper of general circulation, radio and television stations in Sweetwater County who 
have requested notice who have requested notice,. A request for notice shall be in writing 
and on file with Hospital. The request for notice may be made for all future meetings for 
which notice is required. 

D. The Board may recess any regular or special meeting to a place and time specified in an 
order of recess. A copy of the order of recess shall be conspicuously posted on or near 
the door of the place where the meeting or recessed meeting was held. In the case of a 
digital meeting, a digital notice will be sent to all participants, as well as to persons who 
have requested notice. 

E. The Board may hold an emergency meeting on matters of serious, immediate concern to 
take temporary action without notice. Reasonable efforts shall be made to offer public 
notice. All action at an emergency meeting is of a temporary nature, and in order to 
become permanent shall be reconsidered and acted upon at an open, public meeting 
within forty-eight (48) hours, excluding weekends and holidays, unless the event 
constituting the emergency continues to exist after forty-eight (48) hours. In such case 
the Board may reconsider and act upon the temporary action at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the agency, but in no event later than thirty (30) days from the date 
of the emergency action. WY Stat § 16-4-404(d) (2022 2009). 

F. The Board may hold executive sessions, not open to the public, as provided for by law. 
 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

33/141



7  

G. All meetings of the Board shall comply with the Wyoming Open Meetings Act, WY Stat 
§§ 16-4-401 to 16-4-407 (2022 2009). 

H. Any member of the Board who attends, or remains at a meeting, knowing the meeting is 
in violation of the Wyoming Public Meetings Act WY Stat §§ 16-4-401 through 16-4-410 
(2022 2009) shall be liable under WY Stat § 16-4-408 (2022 2009), unless minutes were 
taken during the meeting and the parts thereof recording the member’s objections are 
made public or at the next regular public meeting the member objects to the meeting 
where the violation occurred and asks that the objection be recorded in the minutes. 

I. Day-to-day administrative activities of the Hospital shall not be subject to the above 
notice requirements. 

Section 2. Executive Session 
 

The Board may hold executive sessions not open to the public in accordance with WY Stat § 16-4-405 
(2022 1977)  under the following circumstances: 

A. With the attorney general, county attorney, district attorney, city attorney, sheriff, chief 
of police or their respective deputies, or other officers of the law, to consider matters 
posing a threat to the security of public or private property, or a threat to the public’s 
right of access. 

B. To consider the appointment, employment, right to practice or dismissal of a public 
officer, professional person or employee, or to hear complaints or charges brought 
against an employee, professional person or officer, unless the employee, professional 
person or officer requests a public hearing. The Board may exclude from any public or 
private hearing during the examination of a witness, any or all other witnesses in the 
matter being investigated. Following the hearing inor executive session, the Board may 
deliberate on its decision in executive session. 

C. To consider matters concerning litigation to which the Board and/or the Hospital is a 
party or proposed litigation to which the Board may be a party. 

D. To consider the selection of a site or the purchase of real estate when the publicity 
regarding the consideration would cause a likelihood of an increase in price. 

E. To consider the acceptance of gifts, donations and bequests that the donor has 
requested in writing be kept confidential. 

F. To consider or receive any information classified as confidential or proprietary by law. 
G. To consider accepting or tendering offers concerning wages, salaries, benefits and terms 

of employment during all negotiations. 
H. To consider, discuss and conduct safety and security planning that, if disclosed, would 

pose a threat to the safety of life or property. 
I. To consider any other matter authorized by law to be considered in an executive session. 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

34/141



8  

Minutes shall be maintained of any executive session. These minutes shall show time, members 
present, and subjects considered. No action shall be taken in executive session. Any actions taken 
in connection with executive session shall be taken in the regular session and recorded in the 
minutes of the regular session. Except for those parts of minutes of an executive session 
reflecting a members’ objection to the executive session as being a violation of this act, minutes 
and proceedings of executive session shall be confidential and produced only in response to a 
valid court order. 
 
Section 3. Officers 

Officers elected are President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. Any Board member 
may be considered eligible to be an officer of the Board. Board officers shall be elected at the 
annual meeting July meeting of the Board. Officers’ terms are from the annual meeting to 
annual meeting of the following year. No Trustee shall hold the same office for more than 
three (3) consecutive terms. When completing another officer’s term, the Trustee is still 
eligible for three (3) consecutive terms. 

Section 4. Duties of Officers 

A. The President shall prepare the agenda for all meetings of the Board in consultation with 
the CEO. The President shall call and preside at all meetings of the Board. With the 
exception of the Finance & Audit Committee, the President shall appoint all members of 
the Board’s standing committees who are not designated in the committee charters. With 
the exception of the chairperson of the Finance & Audit Committee, who is the Treasurer, 
the President shall also appoint the chairperson of each standing committee and is an ex 
officio member of all board committees. The President shall act for the Board as a whole 
only with the Board’s authorization. 

B. The Vice President shall, in the absence of the President, or in the event of his/her death, 
inability, or refusal to act, perform the duties of President, and when so acting, shall have 
all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice 
President shall also perform such executive duties as may be delegated to him/her by the 
President of the Board. 

C.  The Secretary, or his/her designee, shall act as Secretary of the Board and shall act as 
custodian of all records and reports of the Board. The Secretary’s designee shall be 
responsible for recording and keeping all minutes and transactions of all Board meetings. 

D. The Treasurer shall be the chair of the Finance & Audit Committee; have signing authority 
on behalf of the Board for financial matters; ensure audited financial statements are 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

35/141



9  

presented to the Board on an annual basis; and manage, with the Finance & Audit 
Committee, the Board’s review of, and action related to, the Board’s financial 
responsibilities. 

Section 5. Quorum 

A quorum of the Board consists of a majority of the Trustees. in attendance at the time the 
meeting is called to order. No action of the Board shall be valid unless such action has been 
approved by a majority of the Board. Proxy voting shall not be permitted. Any Trustee may 
participate in any meeting of the Board or Board committee by means of digital technology 
whereby all members participating in such meeting can hear one another for the entire 
discussion of the matter(s) to be voted upon. Such participation shall constitute attendance in 
person for all purposes, including but not limited to establishing a quorum. 

Section 6. Conflict of Interest 

The Board shall adopt and maintain a comprehensive Conflict of Interest Policy. Upon taking the 
Oath of Office, each Trustee shall be required to agree in writing to adhere to the terms of the 
policy and to annually affirm in writing his/her agreement to adhere to the policy. The Board shall 
have the right to adjudicate any alleged violations of the policy and determine the disciplinary or 
corrective measures required. The Board will also report any violations and subsequent 
disciplinary or corrective measures to the Commissioners. 

Section 7. Voting 

A. Each Trustee shall be entitled to one vote on any matter properly submitted to the Board 
for vote. Voting shall be in person or by digital technology, and there shall be no voting 
by proxy. 

B. If a Trustee has a conflict of interest, he/she may not participate in the discussion nor vote 
on the issue for which he/she has declared a conflict. 

C. The President of the Board shall not be required to vote except when necessary in case 
of a tie vote. The President shall, however, have the privilege to vote when he/she so 
desires. 

D. If any Trustee(s) in the minority on any question wishes to present a written explanation 
of his/her position to the Secretary, such explanation shall be filed with the permanent 
records of the Board. 

 
Section 8. Committees 

 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

36/141



10  

A. All committee meetings will be held on the Hospital premises, unless otherwise indicated 
in the call. 

B. Committees may be standing committees or special committees. 
C. Minutes from standing committee meetings will be provided to the Board at the Board 

meeting following the committee meeting. 
D. Standing committee members shall be appointed by the President with the exception of 

the Board Treasurer who automatically chairs the Finance and Audit Committee. Two 
Trustees shall be appointed to each standing committee. Their tenure will run from annual 
meeting to the following annual meeting, or until a successor is named, whichever last 
occurs. Standing committees of the Board shall be Building & Grounds, Compliance, 
Executive Oversight and Compensation, Finance & Audit, Governance, Human Resources, 
Joint Conference, and Quality. The charge of all standing Committees will be stated in the 
committee charters as adopted by the Board.   

E. Special committees will be appointed by the President on the approval of the Board for 
such special tasks as circumstances warrant. The special committees shall limit their 
activities to the accomplishment of the task for which they were created or appointed and 
shall have no power to act except as specifically conferred by the Board. Special 
committees shall be dissolved upon completion of their task.  

F.  Community Members may be appointed to appropriate committees per Board and CEO 
approval.  

CHAPTER V: HOSPITAL CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Section 1. Appointment 

The CEO shall be appointed by the Board and be responsible only to the Board and shall be given 
the necessary authority and be held responsible for the administration of the Hospital in all its 
activities, subject only to these bylaws and such policies as may be adopted and such orders as 
may be issued by the Board. The CEO is responsible for investigating and resolving all complaints 
and allegations concerning the conduct of the Hospital and its staff, and the Board is responsible 
for investigating and resolving all reported complaints and allegations concerning the conduct 
of the CEO. 

Section 2. Authority 

Within the framework of broad objectives and policies developed and approved by the Board, 
the CEO shall plan, direct, coordinate and evaluate all activities of the Hospital. The CEO shall 
report to the Board at its regular monthly meeting and at special meetings as appropriate. Official 
communication with the Board between regular monthly meetings shall be through the President 
of the Board. This shall not be interpreted to prohibit a Board member and the CEO from 
communicating directly with each other. 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/201805/05/21 

Section 3. Duties 

37/141



11  

The CEO is charged with fulfilling the duties as stated in his/her job description and with 
performing these duties in accordance with his/her employment agreement and in full 
compliance with the Hospital Bylaws. 

 
CHAPTER VI: FISCAL CONTROL 

 
Section 1. Guidelines and Audits   

A. The Chart of Accounts for Hospitals prescribed by the American Hospital Association, with 
modification as needed, the laws of the State of Wyoming, and Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles shall be followed in recording and accounting for financial 
transactions of the Hospital. 

B. The Board shall review and approve an annual budget for the operation of the Hospital in 
a format acceptable to the Director of the Wyoming Department of Audit. The budget 
shall require that 1) businesslike methods are employed in the expenditure of and 
accounting for all monies, 2) a long-term capital expenditure plan is included and 3) the 
implementation of the plan is monitored. The annual budget shall be presented to the 
Commissioners in June, prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year. 

C. The financial records and financial procedures of the Hospital shall be audited annually 
by an independent, certified public accountant and/or firm. Prior to the audit, Trustees 
who are members of the Finance & Audit Committee may meet with the auditors, 
independent of management, to review annual audit and associated management letter. 
The results of this annual audit shall be presented to the Finance & Audit Committee and 
to the Board at the meetings immediately following the completion of the audit report. 

Section 2. Execution of Instruments 

A. Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board, or required by law, formal 
contracts of the Hospital, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages or other evidences 
of indebtedness of the Hospital shall be executed, signed or endorsed by the CEO or other 
officers of the Hospital as provided in Board policy. 

B. There are certain transactions of the Board that require the Commissioners approval as 
stated in the WY Stat §§ 18-8-108 and 18-8-301 (2022 2009). 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

38/141



12  

C. The CEO has the authority to endorse checks made to the Hospital for deposit in any of 
its duly authorized depositories, without countersignature. This authority may be 
delegated by the CEO to other officer(s) of the Hospital to whom the Board, by policy, has 
approved such power. 

D. All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the Hospital, shall be signed or 
endorsed by the CEO or other officer(s) to whom the Board, by policy, has approved such 
power. 

Chapter VII-MEDICAL STAFF 
 

Section 1. Establishment of Medical Staff 
The Board, by this Chapter VII, and by approving the Bylaws of the Medical Staff, which are 
incorporated into these Bylaws by this reference, hereby establishes and sets forth the 
organizational structure of the Medical Staff and its relationship to the Board and to the 
Hospital administration. 

In the event of any conflict between the provisions of these Bylaws and the Medical Staff Bylaws, 
the provisions of these Bylaws shall supersede any conflicting provisions of the Medical Staff 
Bylaws; provided, however, that every effort shall be made to interpret these Bylaws and the 
Medical Staff Bylaws as being consistent with one another. In the event of any such conflict, it 
shall be referred to the Joint Conference Committee. 

 
The relationship between the Medical Staff and the Hospital is the following: 

A. The Medical Staff makes recommendations to the Board regarding privileges and 
credentials, which the Board considers in accepting credentials and granting privileges. 

B. Hospital privileges are in the nature of a license to use the Hospital facilities for the 
treatment of patients. 

C. The Medical Staff is an advisor to the Board concerning the clinical quality and safety of 
patient care. 

D. The Medical Staff Bylaws serve as a framework for self-governance of Medical Staff 
activities, but do not suggest that the Medical Staff is a separate entity; the Medical Staff 
is a part of the Hospital. 

Section 2. Responsibilities of the Medical Staff 
 
 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

39/141



13  

A. The Board shall ensure that the Medical Staff is organized into a responsible 
administrative unit. The Medical Staff shall adopt Bylaws subject to Chapter 7, Section 3, 
of these Bylaws. The Medical Staff shall periodically review its Bylaws, Rules and 
Regulations, and policies to ensure consistency with current standards of care; 
consistency with Hospital policies; compliance with the requirements of The Joint 
Commission and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid; and compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations. Acting in its role as advisor to the Board in matters requiring clinical 
expertise, the Medical Staff shall be responsible for making recommendations to the 
Board concerning initial staff appointments, reappointments and the granting, 
termination, curtailment or revision of clinical privileges for Medical Staff members. The 
Medical Staff shall be responsible for the submission of regular reports on the review 
processes carried out by the Medical Staff in accordance with the requirements of the 
Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations. 

B. The Board shall approve the Medical Staff’s Bylaws and act on recommendations 
concerning Medical Staff appointments, reappointments, terminations of appointments, 
and the granting, termination, curtailment or revision of clinical privileges within the time 
specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws. 

 
Section 3. Medical Staff Bylaws 

 
The Medical Staff Bylaws shall set forth the Medical Staff’s organization and government, 
including mechanisms for the following: appointment and reappointment; the granting, 
termination, curtailment and revision of clinical privileges; liaison between the Board and the 
Medical Staff; and the quality assurance/improvement, peer review and other responsibilities 
of the Medical Staff as required by The Joint Commission, the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid, and applicable laws. 

 
The Medical Staff Bylaws shall be drafted and adopted by the Medical Staff and then presented 
to the Board for approval. The ultimate authority to adopt or amend the Medical Staff Bylaws 
shall be vested in the Board. 

Section 4. Medical Staff Communication with the Board of Directors Trustees and Hospital 
Administration 

There shall be effective and systematic liaison and communication between the Board, the 
Medical Staff, and the Hospital administration. The primary means of collaboration and 
communication shall be the Joint Conference Committee. In addition, the Medical Staff shall 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

40/141



14  

participate in the regular Board meetings by the attendance of the Chief of Staff. All members of 
the Medical Staff are welcome at all Board meetings. 

Section 5. Medical Staff Recommendations 
 

The Medical Staff, as provided in the Medical Staff Bylaws, shall make recommendations to the 
Board for the Board’s approval, which shall include recommendations pertaining to the following: 

 
A. The structure of the Medical Staff 
B. The mechanism used to review credentials and to delineate individual clinical privileges 
C. Individual Medical Staff membership 
D. Specific delineated clinical privileges for each individual exercising such privileges 
E. The organization of the quality and safety activities of the Medical Staff and the Hospital 

as well as the mechanisms used to conduct, evaluate, and revise such activities 
F. Clinical service contracts, as well as mechanisms to monitor and evaluate the quality and 

safety of the deliverables to be provided under said contracts 
G. The mechanism by which membership on the Medical Staff and clinical privileges may be 

suspended, curtailed or terminated 
H. The mechanism for fair hearings 

Section 6. Liability Insurance 
 

Members of the Medical Staff shall annually provide written proof of professional liability 
insurance (malpractice insurance) for an amount to be determined by the Board. Furthermore, 
each member of the Medical Staff shall notify the Hospital within two (2) business days of 
receiving notification of cancellation of professional liability insurance. Noncompliance with this 
requirement is cause for immediate revocation of staff membership and clinical privileges. 

 
CHAPTER VIII: DISCRIMINATION 

Nondiscrimination Policy  

No discrimination because of sex, race, creed, religion, national origin, disability, age, ancestry, 
pregnancy, gender identity, or sexual orientation shall be allowed in the admission and treatment 
of patients, appointments or privileges of Medical Staff members, employment of personnel, or 
the conduct of other business of the Hospital. WY Stat §§ 27-9-105 (2022) 

 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

41/141



15  

CHAPTER IX: PUBLIC STATEMENTS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS 

Official Positions 
The Board acts as a body. Policy and statement of official positions shall be made only after 
Trustees’ concurrence as indicated by a majority vote of the Board. All such statements shall be 
issued by the President through the office of the CEO. 

 
CHAPTER X: GIFTS AND BEQUESTS 

Acceptance Policy 

The Board may receive, through the Foundation, the donations of real estate, money or other 
property in the aid of the establishment of the Hospital or for the construction of additions or 
provision of equipment, furniture, or facilities. The Board shall permit any donor furnishing the 
means for the construction of any individual portion of the Hospital, or for equipping and 
especially endowing any service or room therein, to name the same in memory of any person 
chosen by the donor and shall observe the conditions accompanying every gift that is not in 
violation of Wyoming Law and is consistent with the proper management and objectives of the 
Hospital. The Board may consult with the Hospital’s Foundation prior to the receipt of such 
donations. 

 
CHAPTER XI: VOLUNTEER GROUPS 

Section 1. Purpose 
All volunteer groups, such as the Sweetwater County Memorial Hospital Auxiliary Inc., shall 
serve without remuneration, with their prime purpose being the support and betterment of the 
Hospital and its services. 

Section 2. Governance 

All volunteer groups are authorized to establish a mechanism for governing themselves. Subject 
to the approval of the Board, all volunteer groups may, for governance purposes, adopt Bylaws, 
rules, regulations, policies, and procedures. None of these governance mechanisms shall 
supersede or take priority over these Bylaws. 

Section 3. Reports 

Actions of volunteer groups shall  may be subject to review by the Board through the CEO and 
through an annual report of their activities. 

 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

42/141



16  

Chapter XII INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

Indemnification and Directors and Officers Insurance 
 

The Hospital shall indemnify a Trustee who was wholly successful, on the merits or otherwise, 
in the defense of any proceeding to which the Trustee was a party because he/she is or was a 
Trustee against reasonable expenses actually incurred by the Trustee in connection with a 
proceeding. The Hospital shall also advance expenses to the Trustee as outlined in WY Stat 
§17-19-853 (2020). 

The Hospital shall purchase and maintain directors’ and officers’ insurance on behalf of an 
individual who is or was a Trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Hospital against liability 
asserted against or incurred by him/her in that capacity or arising from his/her status as a 
Trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Hospital whether or not the Hospital would have 
power to indemnify the person against same liability. WS §17-19-857 (2020). 

 
CHAPTER XIII: AMENDMENTS AND ALTERATIONS 

 
Section 1. Requirements 

Amendments and alterations to the Bylaws shall require a majority vote of the full Board. present 
at any regular or special meeting, provided the Proposals for change shall be furnished have been 
furnished in writing to each Trustee at least five (5) days prior to the meeting. 

 
Section 2. Effective Date 
These Bylaws become effective immediately upon their acceptance and adoption and supersede 
all previously adopted Bylaws. 

ACCEPTANCE AND ADOPTION 
 

The foregoing Bylaws of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board of Trustees are hereby 
accepted and adopted as of _______, 2024. 

 

 

Barbara Sowada, President Kandi Pendelton, Secretary 
 

 

Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
05/05/21 

43/141



 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:4/3/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:      Board of Trustees Calendar 

 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☐ Revision 

 ☒ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  
 
The Governance Committee reviewed the board calendar and agreed to bring a draft of 
prototype to obtain the Board’s opinion regarding its utility and recommendations for events to 
be included. Prototype includes known activities; approval dates will be spread throughout the 
calendar year to level the work.  
 

Board Committee Action: 

Please review as a first read at the April 2024 Board Meeting. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 

 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 

 ☐ In House Comments:  

 ☐ Board  Comments:  
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
 
Recommendation for approval.  

44/141



Board Calendar 

June (end of fiscal year) 

 Approve budget for incoming FY 

 Annual CEO evaluation 

 Governance Committee- choose slate of officers for incoming FY 

 CEO end-of-year report to County Commissioners 

 Annual approval of Hospital’s quality plan (PIPS), Safety Plan, EOC Plan 

 Quarterly HR and Compliance Committee meetings 

 Monthly Board education 

July (start of fiscal year) 

 Board election of officers 

 Board President appoint committee members and chairs 

 Board members sign conflict of interest statement 

 Monthly Board education 

August 

 Annual hospital picnic 

 Annual review of Board Committee charters 

 Quarterly review of strategic plan 

 Approve CMS required Plan of Care or Condition of Participation 

 Monthly Board education 

September 

 Start of financial audit 

 Quarterly review of CEO 

 Quarterly HR and Compliance Committee meetings 

 Board meeting in Green River  

 Monthly Board education 

 WHA meeting 

October 

 Annual financial audit presented to Board 

 Monthly Board education 

November 

 Start annual Board Self-Assessment 

 Auxiliary annual report to the Board 

 Quarterly review of strategic plan  

 Monthly Board education 

45/141



 

December 

 Annual employee Christmas dinner 

 Quarterly review of CEO 

 Annual Board Self-Assessment completed 

 Quarterly HR and Compliance Committee meetings 

 Monthly Board education 

 

January 

 Monthly Board education 

 AHA Rural Hospital meeting 

February 

 Quarterly review of strategic plan 

 Monthly Board education 

 

March 

 Quarterly review of CEO 

 Quarterly HR and Compliance Committee meetings 

 Monthly Board education 

April 

 Doctor’s appreciation week 

 Monthly Board education 

May 

 Hospital week 

 Nurses’ appreciation week 

 Quarterly review of strategic plan 

 Monthly Board education 

 WHA meeting 

 

 

 

46/141



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

March 25, 2024 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on March 25, 2024, 

at 2:00 PM with Mr. Craig Rood presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Craig Rood, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

   Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Maintenance Supervisor/ Project Manager 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

Mr. Taylor Jones, County Commissioner 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee   

 

 

Mr. Rood called the meeting to order and asked for a mission moment to be shared. 

 

Mr. Rood asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Ms. Love made a motion to approve the 

agenda. Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

Mr. Rood asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the February 20, 2024 meeting. Ms. 

Richardson made a motion to approve the minutes. Ms. Love seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston said 223 work orders were completed in February, which is right on track.  The 

percentage completed continues to trend with prior months.  

 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley gave an update on Phase 1 of the project as progress is proceeding.  There was an 

issue with incorrect material being ordered which will delay the certification of the space and 

impact the schedule to move on to Phase II.  The contractor has no intent to move the scheduled 

completion date and expects all Phase II work to be done on time once they get started again.  

  

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Mr. Wheatley said they met today with Siemens, the equipment vendor.  We are working on 

approving the fees for consultants.  The final drawings are being finalized and then an estimate 

can be completed. 

 

 

 

 

 

47/141



 

 

Minutes of the February 20, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

SLIB Laboratory Expansion project 

 

Mr. Wheatley said the GMP documents were received over the weekend from Groathouse with 

good news.  The GMP came in at $9,005,423, over the original estimate of $8,726,476 for a 

variance of only $278K.  The GMP includes $500k in contingency.  Mr. Wheatley was optimistic 

the contingency won’t be used in full so we should be close to the original amount used for the 

SLIB grant application.  The next steps are to accept and sign the GMP contract as the State OHLS 

is currently completing the final review of the project. Groathouse will then work on getting final 

bids from subcontractors and suppliers.  The expected construction start date is May 20.  Mr. Rood 

asked how the contingency usage process works.  Mr. Wheatley said the contract is written so all 

parties will approve the use of contingency funds and it is not just at the discretion of the contractor.  

The process will be very transparent and will be tracked as we move through the project.  Ms. 

Richardson said Senator John Kolb contacted her about needing any of the available additional 

ARPA funds from the State.  All agreed we should ask for the additional funds as they will only 

be used if needed. Ms. Richardson will talk to Senator Kolb regarding the process to ask for the 

additional funds and if matching funds will also be required.  Ms. Richardson also asked about the 

timing of being “shovel ready”.  Mr. Wheatley said once we receive final approval from the OHLS 

we can break ground.  Ms. Richardson asked about doing an official groundbreaking. It was agreed 

to wait until May so there won’t be too much time lapse before the actual project starts.  Ms. Love 

said we will take the GMP documents to the Finance meeting this week.  Dr. Sowada agrees we 

should follow Mr. Kelsey’s recommendation to take it to the scheduled Board meeting next week 

and that a special meeting would not be needed. 

 

Master Plan 

 

Ms. Richardson said we are still working with PACT to get them the final statistics so they can 

complete the Master Plan documents.  We did meet internally to review the prioritized project list 

and make changes based on new priorities and the new FY25 capital budget.  There are no other 

updates currently.  

 

U of U suite renovation 

 

Ms. Love said this project remains tabled. 

 

 

New Business 

 

Ms. Richardson said we need to start moving on the MOB Entrance SLIB project also.  The 

grant agreement says we need to have funds committed by 12/2024.  The completion date is 

12/2026.  Mr. Wheatley has started looking for consultant and engineer assistance on the project 

as everyone is backlogged across the County and State.  It was agreed we do not want to give 

back any SLIB grant money so we will push to prioritize this project also.  Mr. Wheatley asked if 

there might be any leniency from the State on dates as everyone is experiencing the backlog and 

limited resources for all these projects.  Ms. Richardson and Ms. Love will reach out to the SLIB 

grant contact to ask about the dates.  

 

 

 

48/141



 

 

Minutes of the February 20, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Other 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 16, 2024; 2:30P – 3:30P.   

 

Mr. Rood adjourned the meeting at 2:34 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

49/141



 

Minutes  

Governance Committee 
March 18, 2024 

 

Present: Irene Richardson, Marty Kelsey, and Barbara Sowada 

Minutes had been previously approved 

Agenda created during meeting 

 

Zoom Meeting called to order at 2:05 pm by Barbara Sowada; all members present. 

 

Old Business 

 None 

 

New Business 

1. Tabled discussion about Board chair job description and evaluation. 

2. Board Policy regarding communication with CEO. Action: Draft of policy was previously reviewed and 

Committee a policy wasn’t needed because communication is working well without a policy. 

3. Board Policy regarding public comments. Recommended by WHA’s public officer training program. 

Action: No need for policy at this time because of history of almost no public comments. 

4. Board annual calendar of work. Decision: Bring draft of prototype to April Board meeting to obtain 

Board’s opinion regarding its utility and recommendations for events to be included. Prototype will 

include known activities; approval dates will be spread throughout the calendar year to level the work. 

5. Board Policy regarding annual approval of depositories for hospital funds. Recommended by WHA’s 

public officer training program. Action: Include annual approval in Board Annual Calendar of Work. 

Recommend this be done in March.  

6. Bonding of Board president. Recommended by WHA’s public officer training program. Action: Irene will 

have Suzan research this. Recommend $50,000 bond, which is same as the bond for the Board treasurer.  

7. Board policy regarding non-board members on board committees. Discussion: Purposes of policy are to 

build a pipeline of future, potential board members and to create an opportunity to access the expertise 

of a non-board member when desirable. Policy is drafted and waiting for revision of Board bylaws to be 

complete and sent to Board for review and approval. Bylaw comments back from all but one person, 

whom Barbara will contact. Goal is for April Board meeting to be first reading of the bylaws.  

8. Education activity for April will be Verilon video on Compliance. Plus another activity, yet to be 

determined. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 2:50:00 pm. 

Next meeting is tentatively scheduled for April 15th at 2:00 pm.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

50/141



Executive Summary – Quality Committee of the Board 

PROVIDED BY  Kari Quickenden, Kara Jackson, and Jennifer Roger 

REPORTING DATE March 2024 Quality Committee Monthly Meeting  

 
 

General 
Highlights 

 We’ve submitted our Evidence of Standards Compliance to The Joint Commission and are 
awaiting notification of acceptance and subsequent accreditation letter.  

 Director of OB provided a review of c-section data.  

 
FY 2024 

PIPS 
Priorities 

 

 Patient Experience – The patient experience back to basics toolkit was reviewed with each 
member of leadership in February. This was well received and leaders had suggestions for 
additions to the toolkit and these will be added in March. Touchbase meetings will occur this 
summer and the toolkit will become part of leadership orientation. Employee and patient 
check-ins will begin in April, with the Person-Centered Care committee leading the employee 
check-ins. Hospital Week gifts will correlate with our compassionate care and I Make A 
Difference service standards. To continue celebrating our person-centered care culture, 
BRAVO quarterly winners will also be highlighted in several ways throughout the organization 
and on social media.  

 
 

Patient 
Safety 

 Pressure injuries not present on admission data was presented, with none reported in 2023.  

 Updates on the proactive risk assessment, initiated in November of 2023 on encouraging staff 
to report workplace violence, were provided and include annual education course with policy 
and additional information for all staff; displaying signage for behavior expectations for staff 
and patients/families in the organization, as well as on our website; encouraging staff to report 
occurrences; and ensure standard messaging of the intolerance of workplace violence to staff.  

 
Medication 

Safety 

 Medication History Updates – Clinics and ED. The nurse directors are working to clean up the 
data in the reports, as medication refills are managed via an encounter in Cerner.  

 
Infection 

Prevention 

 Implementing appropriate isolation precautions for infectious illnesses is incredibly important 
in caring for our patients. Our staff received targeted training in how our EMR can help us 
identify and implement precautions quickly, as well as where to document this in the medical 
record.  This training has been received well and we have seen significant improvement in 
documentation of isolation precautions.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

PIPS 
Committee 

 We heard about wonderful improvement projects happening in multiple departments and 
committees. In addition to our improvement work in quality and safety measures, the Patient 
Safety Committee is working on improving communication between work units by 
implementing TeamSTEPPS. The Infection Control Committee is working to streamline 
tracking of devices that are present on admission to ensure proper and effective surveillance . 
The Trauma Program recently received full accreditation and continues to work on 
documentation improvement. The Medical Office Building Clinics are working on improving 
timely communication of critical results and corresponding documentation. The Family 
Practice and Walk in Clinics are implementing a process to have signed controlled substance 
agreements to benefit patients receiving opioids. Employee Health is working to improve 
processes related to fit testing compliance. The Medical/Surgical department is working to 
improve patient safety by implementing measures to reduce falls.  

 

51/141



~ 1 ~ 
 

 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 

Monday- March 18, 2024 

Zoom 

 

Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Kandi Pendleton, Nena James 

Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson 

Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Shawn Bazzanella, Ruthann Wolfe, Barbara 

Sowada, Ann Clevenger 

 

 
Kandi called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. and welcomed everyone. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Amber, second by Irene, Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The motion to approve the minutes was made by Irene, second Amber, Motion carried. 
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 
A. Turnover 

 

Amber went over the turnover report, stating nothing out of the ordinary.  Irene questioned the portion of the 
report regarding resignations, asking if most of those were within the probationary period.  Amber said that the 
one year at will is working good for the hospital.  Amber went over the percentage of separations was up a little, 
but the hospital was still well within the national average of 25-26%. 

 
B. Open Positions  

 

Amy presented the open positions report, the hospital has 18 RN positions, 35 other positions both clinical and 
non-clinical.   Amy was able to make offers on three of those positions today.  
 
Amy did discuss that she is helping to get a new campaign together to try to reach out to social media in hopes 
of targeting a bigger audience to help fill some of the open positions. 
 
Barbara asked about a few of the positions that were open, but Amber was able to provide the information 
she needed to answer her questions. 
 
Kandi requested that in the next report that the dates that these open positions were opened be listed. 
 
Irene answered questions regarding the NP Positions that are open, she stated that they had hoped to bring 
NPs from Family Med over to help in the Cancer Center and Internal Med but decided that it would be better 
to hire to cover. Ann did say that they were trying to get someone hired and that Dr. Symington is willing to 
train anyone. 

 
C. Contract Staffing 

 
The next report that was discussed was the contractors, Amber and Amy went over the report. Ann discussed 
that the physicians want to do more surgeries and to accomplish that the nursing staff will need to be 
increased from a 3 on 3 schedule to 4 on 4.  It was decided that it would be better to try this with contractors 
to see if would work.  Irene reiterated that they want to make sure that this would be a trial period, making 
sure that the hospital could provide the care needed with the beds that we have available. 
 
Kandi requested that in this report that a little more information be provided, and Amber agreed and would 
include it in the next meeting. 

 
  

52/141



~ 2 ~ 
 

D. Employee injury & illness report 
 

Amber discussed that there was not anything that was surprising or alarming on the OSHA report that was 
presented. Amber did go over a couple of the items listed and what she does to investigate if violence is part 
of the report. Barbara asked when reporting if the categories could be broken out better and Amber did say 
she has meetings on how these are managed and will report back. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Employee Policies Update 
 

Amber reported that she had included the updated policies in the format that was requested so that they could 
see the result. Kandi and Barbara discussed that the updated policy should go back to the board for a final 
review. It was discussed that no one had received any feedback on the updated policies. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Nothing discussed. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

                    None 
 
 
Kandi ended the meeting by reminding Amber that she wanted to see the dates on the open position report and 
more information on the contract staffing report. 

 

53/141



54/141



55/141



56/141



57/141



58/141



59/141



60/141



61/141



62/141



63/141



64/141



65/141



66/141



67/141



68/141



69/141



70/141



71/141



72/141



73/141



74/141



75/141



76/141



77/141



78/141



79/141



80/141



81/141



82/141



83/141



84/141



85/141



86/141



87/141



88/141



89/141



90/141



91/141



92/141



93/141



94/141



95/141



96/141



97/141



98/141



99/141



100/141



101/141



102/141



103/141



104/141



105/141



106/141



107/141



108/141



109/141



110/141



111/141



112/141



113/141



114/141



115/141



116/141



117/141



118/141



119/141



120/141



121/141



122/141



123/141



124/141



125/141



126/141



127/141



128/141



129/141



130/141



131/141



132/141



133/141



134/141



135/141



136/141



137/141



138/141



139/141



140/141



141/141


	Agenda - April 3, 2024 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Orientation Memo Non Discrimination  Anti- Harassment First Read April 2024
	EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT - Changes Shown
	EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT - Draft - Clean Version - for approval
	Orientation memo 2024 Second reading HR Committee Policy April 2024
	Consensual Relationship Policy April 2024
	Orientation Memo Board of Trustees Bylaws Update 2024 Suzan Campbell
	Board of Trustees Bylaws Final Revised March 2024
	Orientation memo 2024 First reading Governance Board Calendar April 2024
	Board Calendar Barbara Sowada Governance Committee March 2024
	Building &amp; Grounds Committee
	Governance Committee
	Quality Committee
	Human Resources Committee
	Groathouse1
	Groathouse2
	I.S. Report
	F&A for discussion at April 2024 Board Mtg Part 1
	F&A for discussion at April 2024 Board Mtg Part 2
	F&A for discussion at April 2024 Board Mtg Part 3
	F&A for discussion at April 2024 Board Mtg Part 4
	Varian Medical Systems

